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Staff Report   
City of Manhattan Beach 

  
 

TO:   Honorable Mayor Cohen and Members of the City Council 
 
THROUGH:  Geoff Dolan, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Jim Arndt, Director of Public Works 

Steve Finton, City Engineer 
Edward T. Kao, Senior Civil Engineer 
 

DATE:  September 15, 2009 
 
SUBJECT:  Authorization to Execute a Master Agreement with Caltrans for the Receipt of 

Federal Transportation Funding and Execution of Program Supplements Adding 
Aviation Boulevard and Valley Drive Resurfacing Projects under the Master 
Agreement. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council pass a motion to: 
 

a) Approve a Master Agreement with Caltrans for the receipt of federal transportation funds. 
 

b) Approve a Program Supplement with Caltrans for the Aviation Boulevard Resurfacing 
Project. 
 

c) Approve a Program Supplement with Caltrans for the Valley Drive Resurfacing Project. 
 

d) Adopt Resolution No. 6211 authorizing the City Manager to sign the agreement and 
program supplements on behalf of the City. 

 
FISCAL IMPLICATION: 
The Master Agreement must be executed for the City to receive federal-aid transportation 
funding through the State of California Department of Transportation (Caltrans).  Presently, the 
City is processing two projects funded through the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 
2009 (ARRA) administered through Caltrans.  The Program Supplements add specific projects to 
the Master Agreement and must be executed for the City to receive ARRA funding in the amount 
of $464,000 for the Aviation Boulevard Resurfacing project and in the amount of $610,000 for 
the Valley Drive Resurfacing project.  
 
BACKGROUND: 

In February 2009, Congress passed the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act which 
provided funding for job preservation and creation, infrastructure investment and other important 
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purposes. The City applied for and was awarded ARRA grants for the following projects: 
 

1. Aviation Boulevard Resurfacing, Marine Avenue to Manhattan Beach Boulevard 
($464,000.00) 

2. Valley Drive Resurfacing, 15th Street to Sepulveda Boulevard ($610,000.00).  
 
ARRA funding would be provided on a reimbursement basis and no local match is required.  
Caltrans has authorized the City to proceed and advertise the projects for construction bids.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Master Agreement and Program Supplements 
Before federal transportation funds can be provided through the State of California Department 
of Transportation (Caltrans), the City and Caltrans must enter into a Master Agreement setting 
the terms and conditions for the receipt of federal funding.  This Master Agreement is general in 
nature and would apply to all current and future federally-funded transportation projects funded 
through Caltrans. Program Supplements add specific projects under the Master Agreement.  To 
date, the City has not administered a federally-funded project through Caltrans, therefore, a 
Master Agreement has not been required.   
 
The Master Agreement and Program Supplements require that the projects be administered 
according to state and federal law using Caltrans guidelines. Caltrans methods are very similar to 
the City procedures; therefore, only minor adjustments are required.   
 
ARRA Projects 
The City is processing both the Aviation Boulevard and Valley Drive projects through Caltrans 
simultaneously.  The general Master Agreement and Program Supplements for Aviation 
Boulevard and Valley Drive have been prepared by Caltrans and are ready for consideration by 
City Council.   
 
Both projects are currently out to bid with bid openings scheduled for October 1, 2009.  The 
Master Agreement and Program Supplements for both projects must be executed before the City 
can be reimbursed any project expenses.   
 
Aviation Boulevard 
Aviation Boulevard is a Major Arterial in the City.  The roadway is within the jurisdiction of 
both the City of Manhattan Beach and the City of Redondo Beach.  The proposed project will 
mill and overlay the existing pavement surface within Manhattan Beach (southbound lanes) from 
Marine Avenue to Manhattan Beach Boulevard.  
 
Valley Drive 
Valley Drive is an important residential collector entirely within the City’s jurisdiction.  The 
pavement surface is deteriorated and rehabilitation is needed. The proposed project will mill and 
overlay the existing pavement surface from Sepulveda Boulevard to 15th Street and reconstruct 
localized areas of failed pavement. 
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Schedule 
Both projects are scheduled for construction during November and December 2009. 
 
It is staff’s recommendation that the City Council pass a motion to approve the Master 
Agreement and two Program Supplements with Caltrans, and approve Resolution No. 6211 
authorizing the City Manager to sign the Master Agreement and Program Supplements on behalf 
of the City. 
 
 
Attachments: 
A. Master Agreement 
B. Program Supplement Aviation Boulevard 
C. Program Supplement Valley Drive 
D. Resolution No. 6211 




















































































